
 

City of Willowick 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, February 06, 2024 at 7:30 PM 

City Council Chambers 

ADA NOTICE 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals needing special accommodations 

(including auxiliary communicative aids and services) during this meeting should notify the City of 

Willowick at 440-585-3700 at least three working days before the meeting. 

AMENDED AGENDA 

CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE  

INVOCATION 

ROLL CALL OF COUNCIL 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Motion to Approve the Amended Minutes from the January 2, 2024, Regular Council Meeting 

2. Motion to Approve the Minutes of the January 16, 2024, Regular Council Meeting 

APPOINTMENTS, SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS & PROCLAMATIONS 

ADMINISTRATIVE APPEALS 

REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR/SAFETY DIRECTOR 

COUNCIL DISCUSSION OF THE MAYOR’S REPORT 

GENERAL COMMUNICATIONS & REPORTS – Directors & Officials 

Service Director – Todd Shannon 

Recreation Director – Julie Kless 

City Engineer – Tim McLaughlin 

Finance Director – Cheryl Benedict 

Law Director – Stephanie Landgraf 

Police Chief – Rob Daubenmire 

Fire Chief – Bill Malovrh 

Chief Housing/Zoning Inspector – Sean Brennan 

WARD MATTERS 

 

 

Page 1



  

City of Willowick City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 2/6/2024 

 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

a) Public statement (1 minute maximum) 

b) Council response to the public 

c) Public clarification (30 seconds to 1 minute for the purpose of restating or rearticulating an 

original   question, concern, suggestion or idea) 

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 

Finance – Bisbee, Mohorcic, Antosh 

Safety – Phares, Malta, McFarland 

Service, Utilities & Public Lands – Malta, Phares, McFarland 

Streets, Sidewalks & Sewers – Malta, Mohorcic, Bisbee 

Tax Compliance – Koudela, Antosh, McFarland 

Moral Claims – Antosh, Phares, Koudela 

Budget – Mohorcic, Koudela, Bisbee 

LIAISON REPORTS 

Planning – Phares/Alternate Antosh 

Board of Zoning Appeals – McFarland/Alternate Koudela 

Volunteer Fire Fighters’ Dependents Fund Board – Antosh, Phares 

Recreation Board – Bisbee/Alternate Phares 

Plan Review Board – Antosh 

Hearts & Hammers – Malta 

FUND TRANSFERS & BID AUTHORIZATIONS 

CONTRACT APPROVALS 

INTRODUCTION & CONSIDERATION OF LEGISLATION 

3. Resolution No. 2024-2 

A Resolution Establishing the City of Willowick Honorary Street Naming Policy 

1st Reading 1/16/2024, 2nd Reading 2/6/2024 

4. Resolution No. 2024-4 

A Resolution Recognizing and Support Fair Housing, and Declaring an Emergency 

5. Resolution No. 2024-5 

A Resolution to Approve Authorizations (Then and Now Certificate) to the City of Eastlake in 

the Amount of $664,668.00 for the City of Willowick and Declaring an Emergency 

6. Resolution No. 2024-6 

A Resolution to Approve Authorizations (Then and Now Certificate) to the City of Willoughby 

in the Amount of $21,871.00 for the City of Willowick and Declaring an Emergency 

Page 2



  

City of Willowick City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 2/6/2024 

 

 

7. Resolution No. 2024-7 

A Resolution to Approve Authorizations (Then and Now Certificate) to Wichert Insurance in 

the Amount of $148,792.98 for the City of Willowick and Declaring an Emergency 

8. Resolution No. 8 

A Resolution by the Willowick City Council, Adopting a Policy for Distribution of Grant 

Funding from the Ohio Ambulance Transportation Program and Declaring an Emergency 

MISCELLANEOUS 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

ADJOURNMENT 

Page 3



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2 
 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE CITY OF WILLOWICK HONORARY 
STREET NAMING POLICY 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Willowick desires to establish a policy by which citizens may make 
application to the City to honor an individual or group of individuals that have made significant 
contributions or impact to the City by permitting the honorary naming of a portion of a City street in their 
name(s); and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Streets, Sewers and Sidewalks subcommittee of Council has recommended the 
establishment of guidelines/policy to govern applications submitted to the City for the naming of streets in 
honor of individual or group of individuals; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City finds the policy established by the Streets, Sewers and Sidewalks 
subcommittee for the honorary naming of portions of City streets to be appropriate and in the best interests 
of the City and the orderly operation of its administration. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Willowick, County of 
Lake, and State of Ohio: 

 
 Section 1. The City hereby establishes and adopts the Honorary Street Naming Policy set forth on 
the annexed Exhibit A, which may be amended from time to time by majority vote of the Council of the 
members of City of Willowick.   

 
 Section 2. It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating 
to the passage of this Resolution were conducted in an open meeting of this Council and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such actions were conducted in 
meetings open to the public in compliance with all legal requirements including Chapter 123 of the Codified 
Ordinances of the City of Willowick. 
 
 Section 3.This Resolution is declared to be an emergency measure necessary for the immediate 
preservation of the public peace, health and safety by the City and for the further reason that it is necessary 
to provide for the orderly operation of the City’s administration and municipal departments;  wherefore this 
Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage by Council and approval by the 
Mayor. 
 
PASSED: _________________, 2024 
                _______________________________ 
                Monica Koudela, President of Council 
SUBMITTED to the Mayor for his approval 
on ______________________, 2024 
           

          APPROVED by the Mayor on 
                ________________________, 2024 
         
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________           ______________________________ 
Christine Morgan, Clerk of Council            Michael J. Vanni, Mayor  

Page 4

Item #3.



City of Willowick 
Honorary Street Naming Policy 

 
 

Purpose. The City of Willowick Honorary Street Naming Policy allows citizens or 
organizations to make application to the City of Willowick to honor an individual or group 
of individuals that have made significant contributions or impact to the City of Willowick 
by providing an honorary designation of a portion of a City street in honor of the 
individual or individuals.  
 
Qualifications of Honoree(s). The honoree(s) must be resident(s) of the City of 
Willowick that: (a) is deceased or retired from a distinguished career for a minimum of 
two (2) years, (b) made significant contributions to the community, arts, science, 
religion, entertainment, philanthropic cause or business, (c) volunteered time and effort 
for the betterment of the city, state or country, or (d) served with distinction in the United 
States armed forces or City safety forces.  
 
Street. The honorary naming of a street is permitted for a portion (1 block) of a City 
street, only. Where an honorary street sign is installed, the original name of the street 
and postal addresses will remain the same. The honorary sign will be different in color 
or design and will be added or incorporated into the original street sign. The design will 
be white lettering on a blue background. 
 
Application for Honorary Street Name Designation: An individual or organization 
requesting the honorary designation shall submit their application to the Council 
Member of the Ward in which the sign is to be placed. The Council Member shall submit 
the application with his/her recommendation or opposition to the City of Willowick 
Streets, Sewers and Sidewalks Committee.  
 
All applications shall contain the following: 
  

(1) Name, address and telephone number of the applicant; and 
(2) Name of honoree(s) as it would appear on the sign; and 
(3) Summary of the reason for the request and qualifications of the 

honoree(s) in accordance with this policy; and 
(4) The address and geographical map clearly marked or highlighted of 

portion of the City street the application is seeking the honorary 
designation; and 

(5) Application fee of $100.00 (to be applied towards the costs of the 
approved sign; if the sign is not approved, the application fee will be 
returned to the applicant).  

(6) If the application is for an honorary designation on a residential street, the 
application shall be accompanied by the consent of at least seventy 
percent (70%) of the property owners of the street.  

Page 5

Item #3.



Approval. After submission of the application to the Streets, Sewers and Sidewalks 
committee, the committee shall provide notice to the property owners within the portion 
of the street to be designation at least fourteen (14) days prior to the meeting at which 
the application will be considered; those speaking in favor or in opposition to the 
application may speak at said meeting. Following the meeting, the committee shall 
submit its recommendation to approve or deny the application to the City Council.  

The City Council shall consider the recommendation of the committee, and any other 
information it deems relevant to the honorary designation, in its legislative approval or 
denial of the application. 

Removal. The City shall bear the costs of production and installation of the sign. The 
City reserves the right to terminate the program, remove the honorary designation or 
take possession of the honorary sign for any reason, in the sole discretion of the City 
Council. The City will bear responsibility for maintenance of honorary signs. 

 

Page 6

Item #3.



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-4 
 

A RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING AND SUPPORTING FAIR HOUSING, 
AND DECLARING AND EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, 2023 marked the 55th Anniversary of the passage of Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act; 

and 
 

WHEREAS, the effort to create equal housing opportunities for all people is encouraged at every 
level of government; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is an important goal of our government to eliminate housing discrimination and 

assure the rights of every citizen to buy, rent, and sell housing, without regard to race, color, sex, religion, 
familial status, national origin or disability; and 

 
WHEREAS, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act and Presidential Executive Order 12892 describes 

the obligation to Affirmatively Further Fair Housing (AFFH); and 
 

WHEREAS, it is a goal of the City of Willowick to accord residents with an enhanced quality 
of life through the development of opportunities in housing, employment, education and services by the 
implementation of plans that assure all people are afforded their rights thus fostering open inclusive 
communities; and 

 
WHEREAS, as an applicant or potential recipient of federal funds, the City of Willowick agrees 

that it will take specified actions to Affirmatively Further Fair Housing (AFFH) and that the City to the 
best of its knowledge and belief asserts that that all policies and practices adopted and in place are in 
conformance with applicable fair housing law and that prior to May 21, 2019 any outstanding civil rights 
matters are resolved per HUD Docket No. FR-5800-N-0I Section Ill-C.2b ELIGIBILITY 
INFORMATION-Threshold Requirements; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Council of the City of 

Willowick: 
 

 Section 1. The City hereby recognizes the duty to affirmatively support Fair Housing within the City 
of Willowick. 
 
 Section 2. It is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating 
to the passage of this Resolution were conducted in an open meeting of this Council and that all deliberations 
of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such actions were conducted in meetings open to 
the public in compliance with all legal requirements including Chapter 123 of the Codified Ordinances of the 
City of Willowick. 
 
 Section 3. This Resolution is declared to be an emergency measure necessary for the immediate 
preservation of the public peace, health and safety by the City and for the further reason that it is necessary 
to provide for the orderly submission of grants for funding of municipal departments;   
 

Wherefore this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage by Council 
and approval by the Mayor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 7

Item #4.



 
PASSED: _________________, 2024 
                _______________________________ 
                Monica Koudela, President of Council 
SUBMITTED to the Mayor for his approval 
on ______________________, 2024 
           

          APPROVED by the Mayor on 
                ________________________, 2024 
         
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________           ______________________________ 

Christine Morgan, Clerk of Council            Michael J. Vanni, Mayor 

Page 8

Item #4.



Page 9

Item #5.



Page 10

Item #5.



Page 11

Item #5.



Page 12

Item #5.



Page 13

Item #5.



Page 14

Item #6.



Page 15

Item #6.



Page 16

Item #6.



Page 17

Item #6.



Page 18

Item #6.



Page 19

Item #7.



Page 20

Item #7.



Page 21

Item #7.



Page 22

Item #7.



Page 23

Item #7.



Page 24

Item #7.



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-8 

A RESOLUTION BY THE WILLOWICK CITY COUNCIL, ADOPTING A 
POLICY FOR DISTRIBUTION OF GRANT FUNDING FROM THE OHIO 
AMBULANCE TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM, AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 

WHEREAS, Willowick Fire Department is in receipt of Twenty Thousand Dollars ($20,000.00) 
in grant funding from the Ohio Ambulance Transportation Program, which distributes sub awards from 
the State of Ohio's Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery Fund as premium pay to eligible fire department 
employees who provided ground ambulance transport during the COVID-19 pandemic; and 

WHEREAS, as a condition of the receipt of the grant funding, the State of Ohio requires a 
recipient to adopt a policy for distributing the premium pay grant funds. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILLOWICK, LAKE COUNTY, OHIO, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The policy set forth below is hereby adopted for the distribution of grant funding from 
the Ohio Ambulance Transportation Program: 

DISTRIBUTION POLICY 

A. In response to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on emergency medical workers, Willowick 
will utilize the grant funding from the Ohio Ambulance Transportation Program to provide 
premium pay to eligible workers in the Willowick Fire Department in accordance with the U.S. 
Treasury's Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds final rule and following all 
guidelines of the Ohio Ambulance Transportation Program. 

B. Premium payments will be made to eligible workers employed by the Willowick Fire Department 
from 1-27-2020 to 4-10-2023 and who remain employed at the time of distribution. 

C. Premium payments will be made as a one-time lump sum payment to an eligible worker based 
upon the eligible worker's total hours worked from 1-27-2020 to 4-10-2023. The hourly rate of 
pay will be determined by dividing the total amount of funds received from the Ohio Ambulance 
Transportation Program by the total of all hours worked by eligible workers from 1-27-2020 to 
4-10-2023. 

Section 2.  That this Resolution constitutes an emergency measure in that the same provides for the 
immediate preservation of the public peace, health, safety and welfare of the inhabitants of the City of 
Willowick and further, provides for the timely acceptance and distribution of grant funds for the operation 
of a municipal department.   
 

WHEREFORE, this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 
approval by the Mayor. 

 
 

Page 25

Item #8.



Adopted by Council: __________, 2024 _________________________________ 
Monica Koudela, Council President 

  
  
Submitted to the Mayor: ___________, 2024 __________________________________ 

Michael J. Vanni, Mayor 
Approved by the Mayor: ___________, 2024  
 
 
ATTEST: ____________________________ 
          Christine Morgan, Clerk of Council 

 

�

Page 26

Item #8.


	Top
	Item #3.	A Resolution Establishing the City of Willowick Honorary Street Naming Policy
	Res 2024-2 Street Naming

	Item #4.	A Resolution Recognizing and Supporting Fair Housing, and Declaring an Emergency
	Res 2024-4 Title VIII

	Item #5.	A Resolution to Approve Authorizations (Then and Now Certificate) to the City of Eastlake in the Amount of $664,668.00 for the City of Willowick and Declaring an Emergency
	Res 2024-5 (Then and Now) Eastlake

	Item #6.	A Resolution to Approve Authorizations (Then and Now Certificate) to the City of Willoughby in the Amount of $21,871.00 for the City of Willowick and Declaring an Emergency
	Res 2024-6 (Then and Now) Willoughby

	Item #7.	A Resolution to Approve Authorizations (Then and Now Certificate) to Wichert Insurance in the Amount of $148,792.98 for the City of Willowick and Declaring an Emergency
	Res 2024-7 (Then and Now) Wichert

	Item #8.	A Resolution by the Willowick City Council, Adopting a Policy for Distribution of Grant Funding from the Ohio Ambulance Transportation Program and Declaring an Emergency
	Res 2024-8 Fire Funds

	Bottom

